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De Luz Post Office
The mail was first carried on horseback from Murrieta 
to De Luz.  Later, when the California Southern Rail-
way was built from San Diego to Temecula, a tiny sta-
tion called DeLuz was established near the confluence 
of De Luz Creek and the Santa Margarita River (now 
on Camp Pendelton). The mail pouch was dropped off 
there, then carried to De Luz by horse.  The archives of 
the US P.O. Dept. states that the first Post Office was opened November 1, 1882 under the name 
DeLuz (one word).  Mr. McClure was the first postmaster.  Rev. Henry J. Camp was appointed post-
master April 24, 1883 and the post office was moved up five miles to his homestead in 1887.

1882-1891 the Howe Post Office was located close to the Santa Margarita River next to the rail road 
station located near the current intersection of De Luz Rd and Sandia Creek Rd.  The postal service 
was maintained by any one of several ranchers who became postmaster in his own home.  Fred 
Orvis was one of these early postmasters and lived on what was later the Stoner’s property on De 
Luz-Murrieta Rd.  It is presumed the post office was located on his property. From 1890 to 1900 the 
mail service was at  W. W. Wilmot adobe (later the Click’s, near the Ecology Center).

People in De Luz had their mail picked up by 
Gramp Day (Harry Kirk Day), starting as early 
as 1882. He hauled the mail with his buggy and 
horse Wanda. People of De Luz Canyon would 
leave their outgoing mail in the hollow of a big 
tree that grew near the hotel at Judson Mineral 
Springs. Gramp Day would take his buggy back 
and forth to the Howe Post office. Sometimes he 
would pick up groceries for people in the canyon. 
“Then we had 9 creek crossings and the grade. 
He would bring the mail back and either drop it 
off at people’s homes and ranches or put it in the 
hollow of the tree  Several times Gramp Day had to put the mail and any packages on the seat be-
side him and his feet up on the dashboard as the water came into his buggy.”  excerpt from a letter 
by Mrs. W. G. King (Margaret Regan).  

In 1910 the Judson Warm Mineral Springs was purchased by Kate S. Regan who remodeled the 
hotel and turned it into a private residence.  The house was built on a hill, with two stories in the front 
and three in the back.  At first the mail was on the second floor and later kept in the basement of the 
hotel until 1914. 

In 1914, De Luz got its own post office  It was built 
in the Garnsey yard by Mr. Leslie and Louis J. Garn-
sey.  Garnsey served as the postmaster for 16 years.  
The post office stayed on the Garnsey property for 
16 years and it became famous for being “The small-
est complete post office in the world”. The post office 
served about 26 families occupying about 25 square 
miles of surrounding country.  

When the railroad washed out in 1916, the mail was 
no longer delivered by railroad.  The mail was deliv-
ered to De Luz three times a week by horse and bug-
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gy from the West Fallbrook Post Office.
On the grade up from the Santa Margarita River there is was a palm tree fed by a spring.  An early 
pioneer tapped the spring and installed a water trough.  Both Wanda and Gramp Day rested in the 
shade and were refreshed by the spring. The round trip from De Luz to Fallbrook and back was 
about 24 miles and took at least five hours. 

The Alexanders were well known hotel proprietors and bought the home from Kate Regan in 1916.  
Kate Regan’s brother, Mr. Tiffany ran the ranch. The Post Office was rebuilt and moved to the The 
Alexander’s place and stayed in this location for eight years. Tiffany was the new postmaster.  In 
1930 Tiffany bought the post office building from Louis J. Garnsey and moved it to the wide spot 
beside the road opposite the old hotel.  During the 1930’s and on Charles Javes and Jack Gallaher 
were the mail carriers.

In 1938 Mrs. Alexander sold her home to Dr. Samuel Wilson, but Mr Tiffany obtained permission 
from Homer McDowell to move his post office across the road from the lovely De Luz School house 
with Tiffany still the postmaster.  In 1939 Mr. Tiffany sold the building to the new post mistress, 
Chloe Baxter, and it was moved back to it’s previous spot at the hotel.  She was the postmistress 
for forty-one years until the postal service to De Luz was stopped.  Mrs. Baxter wanted to move her 
beloved building to the hill above the Garnsey ranch but she felt the grade was too steep for the old 
building to be moved intact.  So it became the property of Dr. Wilson  and he moved it to the bun-
galow next to the old hotel and used as a tool shed.  This property was later owned by the Criders.
Chloe Baxter was the postmistress until the post office was closed in 1955 and the De Luz commu-
nity was served by the Fallbrook Post Office by several rural routes.

Mrs. Baxter and the De Luz Post Office                                                  
  
    										        
Steve Garnsey getting mail from Mrs. Baxter
	
							          Old Post Office before it was rebuilt and moved.
                                                                             

De Luz Post Office 1950

 Mrs. Chloe Baxter in 1953

The house behind  the  building is the original 
Garnsey home.
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Notice how the boxes are on the left-hand side of the building.

Augustine Fredy and George are hired to 
repair and rebuild the post office building
 in 1986 when it is moved from the 
Crider’s place to the Ecology Center in 
the school’s parking lot. 

Partially refurbished post office building

								        Fallbrook Post Office in town 1890
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1986 building restored at the Fallbrook Ecolo-
gy Center.  Notice the different position of the 
postal boxes.  Scott Gordon, the present day 
(2022) teacher at the Ecology Center, pointed 
this out. 

Present day De Luz Post Office

Teddy Garnsey pointing to the place where 
the old post office was placed on the Garnsey
Ranch.

Photo courtesy of the Fallbrook Historical
 Society
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The Southern California Rancher article See page 5
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De Luz Post Office article written by Maie Ellis See page 7

Fallbrook Public School letter to Crider  See page 8

“De Luz Post Office” Fallbrook In Review Volume 8 Winter 2001 Fallbrook Historical Society

My Days at the Ranch Written and Illustrated by Margie Kersey  Book available on Amazon
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